
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT BOARD

MINUTES

Tuesday, October 3,2017

A meeting of the Downtown Redevelopment Board was held Tuesday, October 3, 2017, at 12:00 p.m. in
the Commission Chambers, 301 S. Ridgewood Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida. The following people
were present:

Board Members Present

Mr. Buddy Budiansky, Chair
Ms. Sheryl Cook
Mr. Harold Goodemote

Ms. Quanita May
Ms. CathyWashington (PlanningBoard Representative)
Mr. Scott Weidman

Board Members Absent

Dr. Kent Sharpies, Vice Chair
Mr. Michael Shewmaker

Staff Members Present

Mr. Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director
Mr. Jason Jeffries, Redevelopment Project Manager
Mr. Arthur Huggins, Assistant City Attorney
Ms. Becky Groom, Board Secretary

1. Call to Order

Mr. Budiansky called the meeting to order at 12:12 p.m.

2. Roll Call

Ms. Groom called the roll and noted members present as stated above.

3. Approval of Minutes - June 6,2017

Board Action;

A motion was made by Mr. Goodemote, seconded by Mr. Weidman, to approve the minutes of the
June 6,2017, meeting as presented. The motion carried unanimously (5-0).



4. DEV2017-084 - Rezoning to Planned Development - Redevelopment (PD-RD) - 246 South

Beach Street (Quasi-Judicial-Hearing)

Mr. Jeffries presented the staff report which was includedas part of the packet. Mr. Jeffries stated
the purpose of the rezoning was to allow for a tattoo establishment. Mr. Jeffries stated a
neighborhood meeting was held and was attended by citizens, business owners, and elected
officials; and a summary of the meeting was included as part of the packet. Mr. Jeffries stated the
proposed rezoning was located in the South Beach Historic District and was presented to the
Historic Preservation Board at their meeting on September 19, 2017. Mr. Jeffries stated the Board
determined the request was consistent with historic preservation standards since there was no
request to make changes to the exterior of the building.

Mr. Goodemote asked if the PD was approved, would it affect the entire building and not just the
second floor space.

Mr. Jeffries stated if approved, the entire property would be rezoned. Mr. Jeffries stated the first
floor was occupied by a restaurant and the rear of the space was vacant. Mr. Jeffries stated the
proposed establishment would occupy the space on the second floor that was formerly occupied
by a financial services office, and there was a residential spaceon the second floor in the rear of
the building.

Mr. Goodemote asked if this use was approved, could a similar establishment be located on the
first floor if the space was available.

Mr. Jeffries stated no and referred to Page 7 of the staff report which indicated that the rezoning
would only permit a tattoo establishment on the second floor. Mr. Jeffries stated if approved,
tattooing would only be permitted from 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.; body piercing would not be
conducted; and tattooing would be by appointment only.

Mr. Budiansky asked how the City would enforce those rules and asked if someone from the City
would be on site to see that the doors were closed at 10:00 p.m. Mr. Budiansky stated the Rock
radio station was located on the first floor with the promise that there would be a cafe in the front
of the building, how long ago?

Mr. Jeffries stated the cafe request was approved 2 to 3 years ago and the applicant was out of
compliance.

Mr. Budiansky asked what would happen if this proposed establishment was out of compliance
and where would the enforcement be. He asked what would happen if the business was open until
1:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m. and what would happen if the resident that lived there was affected by
issues from the business being open late at night. Mr. Budiansky stated the parking code was not
enforced so how does the City propose to enforce these restrictions.

Mr. Jeffries stated this was a mixed use and there could be Building Code issues in terms of
separation of uses.

Mr. Budiansky stated when he owned the building adjacent to the applicant's site, he was not
permittedto have residential and office on the same floor.



Mr. Jeffries stated the request was regarding land use and separation of uses had more to do with
building codes.

Mr. Berger stated there was staff for enforcing any laws of the City and staff was assigned to
enforce it. Mr. Berger stated if there was a violation of the law, staff followed up and moved the
complaint through the process.

Ms. May asked for clarification of the letter from Bill Green Jewelers that was included in the
packet.

Mr. Jeffries stated three letters were received in his office and two were provided by the applicant.
Mr. Jeffries stated several merchants contacted him and he asked that they put their comments in
writing.

Ms. Cook asked if this particular tattoo parlor did not stay at this site, could another tattoo parlor
locate at this site.

Mr. Jeffries stated another tattoo establishment could locate at this site since the PD would run
with the land. Mr. Jeffries stated the business would have to be located on the second floor and
would have to meet the criteria that was proposed.

Ms. Cook stated Code Enforcement had obviously not worked in the downtown with the radio
station since they were not in compliance and nothing had been done in 2-1/2 years. Ms. Cook
asked who regulated tattoo establishments.

Mr. Jeffries stated tattoo establishments were regulated by the State Department ofHealth.

Applicant's Presentation:

Colleen Miles, Land Development Resource Group, 140 S. Beach Street, Daytona Beach, Florida
spoke representing the applicant. Ms. Miles stated the Department of Health regulated tattoo
establishments and they inspect randomly. Ms. Miles provided additional hand outs to the Board
which included letters of support from downtown business owners; letters of support from
clientele; and depictions of the suite and how sound issueswouldbe addressed.

Ms. Cook asked how the businesswould be regulated to ensure that tattoos were not performedon
minors.

Ms. Miles stated the enforcement would be the same as for any restaurant that serves alcoholic
beverages, including any establishment that served or gave away free alcoholic beverages. Ms.
Miles stated Code Enforcement had been and would continue to be an issue in Daytona Beach, not
just on Beach Street. Ms. Miles stated she did not know about the cafe but the use that is
requested would be regulated as any other use.

Mr. Budiansky stated he had been involved in Beach Street for a long time and for at least 20
years it had beendiscussed that people should be living on the upper floors of the buildings. Mr.
Budiansky stated he felt the one apartment that was on the second floor of this building would
probably go away.



Ms. Miles stated the individual that occupied the apartment was regulated by the same sound
constraints as the proposed applicant would be. Ms. Miles stated the City's plan was for art and
synergy in the downtown and this was a form of art. Ms. Miles stated tattooing no longer had a
negative connotation. Ms. Miles stated the only building code requirementwas that uses could not
abut each other without fire separation., which would be the same as was required for office and
residential on the second floor.

Mr. Weidman asked why this site was proposed instead ofa store front.

Ms. Miles stated the applicant liked the proposed site but noted the business did not draw walk-by
traffic.

Ms. Cook asked if there would only be one person working at this site.

Ms. Miles stated there would be one person working in each room.

Ms. Cook asked if the main entrance would be from the side alleyway offof Ivy Lane.

Ms. Miles said yes.

Ms. Cook asked about the proposed signage.

Ms. Miles stated there would be front signage as was in place for the financial office and would be
in compliance with the RDD-1.

Ms. Cook asked if the open deck balcony would remain for the clients to wait.

Ms. Miles stated it would remain as is.

Mr. Budiansky asked if there were restrictions on the number of PD's that could be allowed up
and the down the block.

Mr. Berger stated there were no restrictions on the number of PD's.

Mr. Budiansky asked ifapproving this would set a precedent.

Mr. Huggins stated if this PD was allowed, it did not mean that anotherPD could not be permitted
in the future.

Ms. Washington statedshe was concerned about the hours of operation. She statedhaving a tattoo
parlor on the second floor takes away from Beach Street. Ms. Washington stated she was
concerned about foot traffic for a site adjacent to a residence.

Mr. Budiansky stated there are other late-night establishments such as restaurants and bars that
were open in the evening along Beach Street which were permitted. Mr. Budiansky stated Beach
Street was proposedas an entertainment district and some had worked and some had failed.

Ms. Miles stated there were conditions for hours of operation in the PD and other businesses along
Beach Street had no conditions.



James Rogers, 1025 S. Beach Street, No. 162, Daytona Beach, Florida, stated he was the
Applicant and stated he would not be performing body piercing since that required a separate
license. Mr. Rogers stated he did not have anyone else working for him right now but may hire
one or two additional people. Mr. Rogers stated he had a large volume of people that request his
artwork so it was usually done by appointment only since he was booked 2 to 3 months in
advance. Mr. Rogers stated a client comes into the office for a consultation and to discuss the
artwork they would like to have done and then the actual tattooing was done at another
appointment.

Mr. Budiansky stated he was concerned that the business would become a hang-out place at night.

Mr. Rogers stated he did not want his business to be a hang-out place and he did not want to
remain open late. Mr. Roger stated his business would not be a party spot and it would be a drug
and alcohol free zone.

Mr. Goodemote asked if there was a minimum space requirement by the Department of Health
that would prohibit the site going from 2 stations to 6 stations.

Ms. Miles stated there would be Fire Code restrictions on the site and noted the chairs for these

businesses are similar to dental chairs and take up a large amount of space.

Public Comments:

Fayn LeVeille, 2011 S. Peninsula Drive, Daytona Beach, Florida stated she was the Museum
Director of the Halifax Historical Museum and stated the Museum was not in favor of this

business locatingnear the Museum. Ms. LeVeille stated the Museum was very family and cultural
oriented. Ms. LeVeille stated more people were moving into the second floor of buildings on
Beach Street and people wanted it to be an urban living space. Ms. LeVeille stated the lady that
occupied the second floor apartmentadjacent to the proposed site left for work at 4:00 a.m. so she
was asleep very early in the evening. Ms. LeVeille stated the owner of Davidson Fruit lived on
the second floor adjacent to the proposed sight and was concerned about noise from the proposed
business. Ms. LeVeille stated the area on Beach Street near the Main Street Bridge where the
motorcycle shops were located would be more suitable for this business. Ms. LeVeille stated a
letter from the Museum's Board of Directors would be provided to the City.

Daniel Harshaw, 100 S. Beach Street, Daytona Beach, Florida stated there was concern that the
landlordof the proposed site may not be involved in policing the proposed business. Mr. Harshaw
stated he was concerned about doing spot zoning on Beach Street and a precedent would be set.
Mr. Harshaw stated Beach Street may no longer be a restaurant/retail area since spot zonings could
be approved for other types of business in the future. Mr. Harshaw stated he felt if this was
something that should be allowed, it should be granted as a permitted use and not changing the
zoning. Mr. Harshaw statedeveryone knew what business he ran on BeachStreet but his signage
did not say pawn shop in order to be respectful of his neighbors. Mr. Harshawstated pawn shop
and tattoo had the same connotation. Mr. Harshaw stated if the proposed business had a
following, it did not need to say tattoo on the front of the building. Mr. Harshaw stated he was
concerned about changing zoning through a PD process.

Mr. Goodemote stated he agreed with Mr. Harshaw regarding changing zoning through spot
zoning. Mr. Goodemote statedhe had servedon this Board since 2006 and the Board had worked
a long time to develop a vision and Master Plan. Mr. Goodemote stated he was concerned that

5



O.'ij fcii.V &\ b-::'-:'< xb'-'Oi! ,rb''jfi ^ioNrH .£di .OM .r^? d-.ty.A" .?. l:.0{ .>/5^t;H .::.-'tju1
STBixiCpy c Ix/'m;$v..a ;p.flj -mis. 'jujvjU- vb,"? fimcmoVj'jo -xi ion bio-/// sd b^tefe- t*.r»: jrt.iDiJqtjA
•nirf /;>rn ;»r! y/<,;j ,'bh aii<"' -to* ^nivh:,/; **.& jno/ns r/rir ion bio -j$\ b*i)&P. as^o>l :tbA .•jzn'j-*i!
-hi i^i/p'/i iHsfl -ji.-iotrq iu tiffiL'k;/ .ipsl a bi,ii orl bsJute 8'it?^o>! .iM /:.-!no:>q btsollibbi owl io 3r;'>
'♦: ^.;;;.'i:;; v •) C y9>k::.'-"! >.ii'-- vr; *-t>**«=t >Jmj /rrormnioaqB yd -jnoi: /ib:-ui e>:r n o^; >!iov.jn<
..«-;« ;.\>f'.ih <;.' bfr.; .'ijjii.rlu-'no'} ^ .-./• ^lilo ?di oi-ii" aaaiov .«ns»ifv f.. \yz\*\6 irrvuc'JI .iM .aoni;;b.
vjt'. v*, if. *-»"if •» -.«:••' /it:•>••''*»xj <:£ij."jf: *»!•}} a*j:[j brm ouou ••.'«?! o? o>lil LlfK./-- /ul] jho^ ?•'.-.

.;.::> d «» ^.Viiq i:io-uns*i a s-'-;ov;'.i di^cv/.- -••>ni<:i/d srb uiib horr^m;;* %// 0i! botota •< -brmtb.:*! .if-/

o! !;• fOf? b*. '-«!» bffi. ..'•••:?•• Mo-c^fi i: "d OJ t?S*3ilJBr.'d Kid Jwi>/ -.** bib \>d b'W*; 2*f*j'.;wb' .:'••$
••. ;. ./f* '..;,/'„•' j} bnu T'i!]' <.n*»cj K^ 'on Lbovv ga'jfiteud *rd b <q.ni>- ;cg'»'I .'<M .o1lI '••**{ o ric-c/«

ibb.H 5o 1rr.-rnrr.e3n -*di y/; ir^^rrflup^ vims?, fmrrn la irn u ^>// r.^oi'U ho*>x j'h^r^cx-^ .tM

*i.'.5f;i •»'••. >*ibb. -yrb l.iSor b% .•!.' ,>iv n- c^'obonkvi sbo'J 'm;l ad bluov/ o*iod7 b^)f»?p ^IiM .V

"Mi:.»s:;l/ or)-? >ji"-*. ^d.-' !.--.sr;jr> a!.<hci ! ,r/^ >C muW'Al .'j-hi\ xUsPsurrA >: «i01 ,i»U-'./;..-1 nvti'vl

Jii'iiiJl.; j bn ; vjffiiHt /t*j / :•},,-/ mu^'ji.-'i jri* b.jnfe sUbVy I .M .mm<m^ Off"? "fii.ts gniteoo! fcissnisrid
no .^nibll*?'-' .; ":,:•][ h<vy;-••-, s,!j </ju! • nr.':-in vis'^ *>(f{0>"| swiri b^hm zvh'fsJ ;*M .bsin^ht*
nd' v_bLs -.,<ii ii'vN.^ «jMj"? / .,J /K .-j'^q^ ;^;Trvii why ras ^d 0; jc b'^u;'*/ v;qoaq b«it> ios-^ i!^o^[T
>rk (,- .nt pO'):!- u? .Itov/ y;t »tvi */i<? bagoqoiq orb ol JftO'jfitbfi JiitJiTsi^q:- -joov* bn^}^< utii boiquouo
r<; b > i! ibii'? f'« •.... .-f.CI'•/• nnv/o ^/fb h-'-:l.. -fibV^.i .>M .arrb'Twrv orb ni {b^o vrj^ qs^idf? hh?/
bfjooqwfi 'ifb aioi'i v-.;oh !,.•«•«•!". L-^rnoyfTov ?p»v' bars .fd^f« bt>«oqo^q wfl »'v tayo;j|5c nooft bno')»R e»'il
t>fb t '̂jfl-A/ '3;abr.c! r.-.;7lH nit.V t»d? -;.«^r? Vj\/-\? tl.nyiH no G*nii ^h t-.;;r}i» ^HbvS I ".?M .^'j(uhu6
u bak?- -Hi'sVMj j>i>/ ..:?...nj2?id ?a(Ii ioI '/iufb^ 'yjom' srf blucvyv i:::.i;.jol si^v/ ;<ao«b: sb'pio.'om

./J. ) :^b i< bjh- /«• ;:; .0 bbrow ?io:toy!in>,, hsrr>: p'rmiO^;j!/ veil miTl'} lOii'ii

o.-b };»•] "'••yj':-,j 'R// oii:;b b^ijjj^ -.b'loj ' .flut^C BDoivBCI .tesiJr8 Hu/.^i .2 001 v/erleiBH \<Am\G
.•7;;f{>.i:.' i .*M' ..-.>.vfiieifd bc^ov'iq -'• r}riioii»'wj /u 'j'j/fovnt oti ionyui i ^ii.? bosoqoia odr'io b7oii«"Bl
;.-'. -.»** .'.Hiov- jpfb^y^iq d bou boi:^! riys^tf a *^ninos !i}q^ umob JiioHu bo«i^;jrioj -6>v od hs&Tc.
1:".. ^ijf-rfo:. .;-7fii aortic' uyjn bs-JOi'Jcanuf:^^ n ad i^yaui on •(,»m.t05ij? dossH bo)£>> »7i;d«n/iH j?/

•r." . "! '*} llc'f j.i bjjuM //Rfb'-^Il i^^ .*?-iuJx/i e>di ni ?.,>.:uu<n(i V» p.yq1.*? f.Hbo io'I Ixr/oiqq*; 20
:ui.f f{-i- • ;/ (b -o-i brj/. o^u j^.'jir.fnoq s ?s bujnxny ad blooda tr fbowoibi on hluorh< u-rfj gnifilo'-noa
jyfir-iii-- <:til jj"4 looiiH if-;•$.•;£! no am gri ^sniaud IbiN wi»a^ MTO'no'/sbifi^fg wsrf«i^!! :sM .an/rfos
qc-if ij.'/fi-q b-jj/:"- A-firb-j;U .?N4 ^u^ri^isn ^Ho k^iogqa^i ^d.ot lobio ni qoria rr/v;.q vfj;-; ion.bib
o >::*} c^nniu b^c-iCf^q ^rb ':': boij?J< -vsrigisH .iM .aoite;onoou &nib« od'i. Url oojjal bnii
•:;'b-./ ori ta)e?> '^;f;/uH .tM ijfiibfiud ^fblo jnoirt sdJ" np </«Wpj vr.?- ot b^yn )oa bib ti ,cniv.'olio't

.E?t>ooiq Q*! Brlgm)*T:b ^rrbos ^fii^rwijb "ii.'odii byrnv^f? j

::*q^ iij;'/i!b ^a;n-'^ §nb.:JLjiv gnibiBg^« i-maiM .tIv! rbiA' b^s'i^ft jri b^ate a^omiibon(? .*;?/
*>';.!*io.v i.tvl bir.ofl ^rl) brnj fv'HK" s->a;> )jj£0?-] rjbb ao b'&v-iSK b&d a/i b^Jf.^ oiomoboof) .7>/. .gacnox
mHi l'?n;::"j!-ou krw orl bsj/j-* orirnab;K>0 iM .ru-iJ*i 'fslanM hem noi»i/ ^ nobvob .•r^rnh rmol s



each building could be changed through spot zoning. Mr. Goodemote stated he was also
concerned about compliance and enforcement. He stated for 5 years the vacant auto lot sites on
north Beach Street had not had landscaping and the Board was told there would be improvements
to the site. Mr. Goodemote stated for 2 years there was a tarp at Kale Cafe with no permanent
signage. Mr. Goodemote stated Kale Cafe opened a second store in Ormond Beach and the
business owner was told they could not put a tarp out front. Mr. Goodemote stated if the business
owner could afford to open a second store, they should be able to afford to put signage on the
business in downtown Daytona Beach. Mr. Goodemote stated the applicant stated there would be
a cafe at the radio station site on Beach Street and two years later, there was nothing. Mr.
Goodemote stated there was a restaurant on Ridgewood that had a residence behind it and the
applicant stated there would be a separation between the two sites and the restaurant was opened
and the separation was not in place. Mr. Goodemote stated we did not seem to have compliance or
enforcement. Mr. Goodemote stated based on these past issues, he was hesitant to allow any more
changes to the Master Plan.

Ms. Miles stated the application was in compliance with the Master Plan. Ms. Miles stated the
Master Plan allowed for innovative art-based uses. Ms. Miles stated the lack of enforcement in

the City should not preclude new businesses from locating in the area. Ms. Miles stated what was
proposed was in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, the Downtown Master Plan, and PD
by limiting the use.

Mr. Budiansky asked if he wanted to place a massage parlor over the doggie business on Beach
Street, could he establish that business through the PD process.

Mr. Jeffries stated a massage parlor was a prohibited use and a massage parlor could not be
permitted through a PD process in the redevelopment area.

Mr. Harshaw asked why spot zoning was being permitted for a tenant, not the land owner. He
asked why the land owner was not in attendance to request the change in zoning for his land. Mr.
Harshaw stated there would be no increase in the tax base by changing the zoning.

Ms. Miles stated there would be an increase in the tax base because there was a new business

generating revenue. Ms. Miles stated the City's code was changed in order to allow this to
happen.

Ms. May stated she would support this request since she supported all forms of art.

Mr. Goodemote stated there was a stigma in having the word tattoo on the signage and asked if the
word tattoo could be limited to the signage on the side street.

Mr. Huggins stated signage is not the order of business at this time.

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Goodemote, seconded by Ms. May, to approve DEV2017-084 -
Rezoning to Planned Development - Redevelopment (PD-RD) - 246 South Beach Street, in
accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion failed 2-3 with Mr. Goodemote, Ms.
Cook, and Mr. Budiansky voting no.



5. Wall Sign - Revolution Performance Indoor Cycling

Mr. Jeffries presented the staff report which was included as part of the packet. Mr. Jeffries stated
the request was for a proposed wall sign at 240 S. Palmetto and the request was to paint the sign
on the building, due to the industrial look of the building.

Applicant's Presentation:

Dr. Levano stated she was proposing a chiropractic membership-based facility that would include
an indoor fitness and cycling studio on the second floor.

Vadim Zolotarevskiy stated the building has roofing material on the front and the building was
more conducive to having a painted, retro style signage.

Alan Lootens stated the building was constructed in 1950 and was previously owned by the
property owner next door, Pete Zahn. Mr. Lootens stated he hoped to buy other buildings in the
downtown area and felt the proposed business would help draw business to the downtown. Mr.
Lootens stated there were lights above the proposed painted sign which had been approved. Mr.
Lootens stated painting of the sign would be done by a professional painter.

Mr. Goodemote stated he was concerned about setting a precedent. Mr. Goodemote stated he was
not opposed to the application since it was not on Beach Street.

Mr. Jeffries stated a precedent would not be set since the application was tied to this specific
building and the style of this building.

Mr. Zolotarevskiy stated at some point, the front of the building would change but he was asking
for this signage for the building as is. Mr. Zolotarevskiy stated the lighting on the front of the
building was gooseneck lighting which was permitted.

Ms. Cook stated she felt the signage proposed was larger than what is permitted.

Mr. Jeffries stated the graphics reflect signage that was larger than what was proposed.

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Goodemote, seconded by Ms. Cook, to approve a painted Wall Sign
for Revolution Performance Indoor Cycling at 240 Palmetto, consistent with the architecture of
the time period and specific to the metal panels; and if the front of the building was changed in the
future, the applicant would need to reapply, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The
motion carried unanimously (5-0).

6. Redevelopment Project Updates

Mr. Goodemote asked about the status of the electronic message board signs proposed along
International Speedway Blvd.

Mr. Jeffries stated that item would not be moving forward.



bo-".i/. ^onlfoi. .-?t/ ?t>"^yq orb \f> jisq <-n b^buloni e/w rhrdv/ ftoqs'tTi'p.te yrb bsmogoiq asnfio* .I'M
r*,r;..' lib »r?i*sq-ot <rfiv.' j?.'f>iu/h orb bar, ottsrnU;*r .£.()££ ?5i ngte lb;/: bo/.-qosq n *o'3 au'ff Jc;o-Jjp.n *>ri!

."ntbbud orb'bo >!.ooi IsKi-iuL-rJ ;.-;b* oi onb ..gidbili'd yd? no

or ,jj?r? bbiow tofb vjiib/A &;;-.?•:< i--qrd#redm3m olfomqo'udo s Sfb^oqoin ?,;,v oris bofnv on?../'; ! iU
."tO'̂ l't brroo^m) ?io ojbij?^ ^ni;o-{0 brus ch^hjij v„>obf:J o^

•: ..- orbbfbiri v,|j {,f5jt> jr{0-/| 5r[} ft., iQn^Jr>nt gnftao'f ;-;Bri jjwbliud orb bo.wjfr (blevo'UvJckA ,*n;b?-;V
.sgsn^ra ${/}% oitei fh'jtnizn s vrivs&: ->* ovL/jbn<.-•;. ;N-fi

orb y-1 o.»ii'/o "/^iroi'/v/q ^'-y b;u> 0>v:i m boiom^nro *.b* ^jnJbli.vd orh- bsJufe ?.r»'.?JooJ rm1/
o^> ': o^Ubjo -vi.ro /?»d oj b-.q .ri 'ni i;oirj* ^uyjooJI :M .n<lnX oiob .v<ob >/:oa -io/jwo /Uoqrrjq
ib* cr,'M :/vou -;tb of ^orrb.;.;-! '.vrib qtad biuow ^.om^rj'! bo?oqo'«q orb do1 Lnc no'is «v.'<jjti>/ob
••?/< .bon/jqqii aood ben tbiib-o ii%?^ boftdeq bo;joqo'jq srto o/ods ?,#foU or>v/ otorij hofc$j<s ?jhmooJ

.-fomruq b.nwi?.£5br»q p v.d £»<wb '-d bluny/ u^i?-. sdi'io sftimjjsq bob^ fnoiooJ

?}.v/ off boJetaaiwnobooO .-:!••* .»n'ib^u-r»q e gnitto* ftrodi; bomoo.r>o <i-/' r.rf botesa 9join3bt,o\.) .>bi
.*os*»# rioaoffrK> ion «£>/ ?i vimz aoioaotiqqn orboi b^or^y, „.:-

oP;-one eidi.o! bob 'm"ja' noiJL^ilqG/i firb oonin !o« 3d lOfi biuuA tn^byos-jf] :; bolrtv ?T»i*?fl^T. .';^,i
.gnibliud airf< To ^iv;^ w'jit bn?. ^;riblluo

n*\vk '.-•, ^^w yft iurf jjjriBfi'J bifjc// i-nibbivd ^di '!•:> mo'u ori» Jtrioq •sau^ jf, b^V.U 'jyAzTmtii>\o\.y\te.

.boqifrnoq&''/y dvrri"' u.'inj.^il >bo(rj2JK>^ isw ^ubilvc:

.b.»>bm\oq *r r;:u/>' mt? -:$mm *:nw bs^-q-r-'iq 'm^h: oflnfai orb; bo)i;te ^jo3 .aM

.bsi-oqfaq vxi"/ k>f.*"v :tsdl"ia£}*is{ gaw i«$rb &»Bfi^b: l.^fjoj rvp' jh^ vdi bojr^g ^K^ti*. .^^

u^ro litiV/ bjinic i l ^voiqq.i o: .-!oo'..) .;4'/> vd J^abnoosfc ...'lofrrcbo'.b) .'uV vd ^biuu a&.v noijom A
*'o -.uiirutifi^ifi oil ;hvf/ moix''•[•yt .ois^mfs'i f>t-C )6 ^nibvO -jo^brtl o^njifrriolt^i noaufo^/I 'rcyi
..'{«' i L'ji«iii:dv >i:v7 ^rrfblwi orU'l> Tnofi vr(;1? baft :?bnsq Ui^rn orb o; oflboqs brm bohaq saiii sdj
•ir .^»ii-.rf-s'!C| •s )i yj'Ji "HyJ?. ?Ai rbrw yonf;b\ou^ m r^iqqf;o'iM boon bffiovr irujoiiqqi; A\ ,zjwiisi

\0"'z) {i;'UofnlrTsn?T borflBo noitom

;|ji«'-{c b^Roqoiq >v.^ biBod o^i>;^ori oJouiror^b srb 70 ai?lBtB 3fb laoda boi<B oX;mo;vw'̂ ' .7r4
.b/i9 -rt''btjrxf^ J;:.noi;:'>(«?i.:i:1

hmfrnA aaivorr? od jo/( bfuow moil &dt bols^ gsi/lloi .iM



7.

8.

Mr. Weidman asked about the status of the vacant car lot sites on North Beach.

Mr. Jeffries stated the EPA testing was complete and the site was now in remediation.

Ms. Cook asked about the Pub and Grub site proposed to be located across from City Hall.

Mr. Jeffries stated the permit was still active and he had seen people working at the site prior to
Hurricane Irma.

Ms. Cook asked what was being done with the historic bus station site.

Mr. Jeffries stated Joe Hopkins was the engineer on that project and Mr. Hopkins stated prior to
Hurricane Irma that he would be providing plans to Mr. Jeffries. Mr. Jeffries stated he would
check on the status of that project.

Mr. Jeffries stated he had not heard anything recently on the status of the International Speedway
Blvd. streetscape plan.

Board Comments

There were no Board comments.

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned.

Becky Groopi, Recording Secretary


